
 
 
     
        

  

        

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 
         
         
 

   

   

 
 

   

 

 

    
    

 
 

        

 

         
       

 
 

FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 

October 20, 2023 

By Email Only 
ggilio@dhillonlaw.com 
dwarrington@dhillonlaw.com 

Glynis Gilio, Esq. 
David Warrington, Esq. 
Dhillon Law Group, Inc. 
2121 Eisenhower Ave., Suite 608 
Alexandria, VA  22314 

RE: MUR 8043 (RR 21L-63) 
Women Vote Smart 

Dear Ms. Gilio and Mr. Warrington: 

On October 17, 2023,  the Federal Election Commission accepted the signed 
conciliation agreement submitted on behalf of your client, Women Vote Smart and Amy S. 
Kremer in her official capacity as treasurer, in settlement of a violation of 52 U.S.C. § 30118(a), 
a provision of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended.  Accordingly, the file 
has been closed in this matter. 

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days.  See 
Disclosure of Certain Documents in Enforcement and Other Matters, 81 Fed. Reg. 50,702            
(Aug. 2, 2016).  Information derived in connection with any conciliation attempt will not become 
public without the written consent of the respondent and the Commission.  See 52 U.S.C. 
§ 30109(a)(4)(B). 

Enclosed you will find a copy of the fully executed conciliation agreement for your 
files.  Please note that the first installment of the civil penalty is due within one month of the 
conciliation agreement’s effective date, by November 19, 2023.  If you have any questions, 
please contact me at (202) 694-1650. 

Sincerely, 

Christine C. Gallagher 
Attorney 

Enclosure
  Conciliation Agreement 
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BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 

In the Matter of ) 
) MUR 8043 

Women Vote Smart and ) 
Amy S. Kremer in her official capacity ) 
as treasurer ) 

CONCILIATION AGREEMENT 

This matter was initiated by the Federal Election Commission pursuant to information 

ascertained in the normal course of carrying out its supervisory responsibilities. The Commission 

found reason to believe that Women Vote Smart and Amy S. Kremer in her official capacity as 

treasurer (the “Committee” or “Respondent”) violated 52 U.S.C. § 30118(a) by knowingly 

accepting prohibited contributions in violation of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as 

amended (the “Act”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Commission and Respondent, having participated in informal 

methods of conciliation, prior to a finding of probable cause to believe, do hereby agree as follows: 

I. The Commission has jurisdiction over Respondent and the subject matter of this 

proceeding, and this Agreement has the effect of an agreement entered pursuant to 52 U.S.C. 

§ 30109(a)(4)(A)(i). 

II. Respondent has had a reasonable opportunity to demonstrate that no action should be 

taken in this matter. 

III. Respondent enters voluntarily into this Agreement with the Commission. 

IV. The pertinent facts and law in this matter are as follows: 

MUR804300051



 

  

 

  

    

 

  

 

   

   

 

 

  

  

   

  

  

  

   

 

   

MUR 8043 (Women Vote Smart) 
Conciliation Agreement 
Page 2 of 5 

1. Women Vote Smart is a non-connected, hybrid political committee, with a 

separate segregated account used for the purpose of making independent expenditures. See Carey 

v. FEC, 791 F. Supp. 2d 121 (D.D.C. 2011). 

2. Amy S. Kremer is the Committee’s treasurer. 

3. Under the Act, corporations are prohibited from making contributions to 

federal candidates or their authorized committees, and “a candidate, political committee, or other 

person is prohibited from knowingly accepting or receiving” such contributions. 52 U.S.C. 

§ 30118; 11 C.F.R. § 114.2(b), (d). 

4. Under Commission regulations, a contribution from a limited liability 

company (“LLC”) is permissible if the LLC is treated as a partnership for tax purposes and has 

not elected to be treated as a corporation by the Internal Revenue Service. 11 C.F.R. § 110.1(g). 

LLCs that claim corporate status or those that are publicly traded are treated as corporations for 

purposes of the Act. Id. § 110.1(g)(3). 

5. A hybrid political committee, which makes both independent expenditures 

and direct contributions, can accept unlimited and corporate contributions but must maintain a 

separate non-contribution account for the purpose of making independent expenditures and a 

separate contribution account that is subject to the Act’s amount and source limitations from 

which to make contributions to federal candidates. See Carey, 791 F. Supp. 2d at 136. 

6. A political committee’s treasurer is responsible for examining all 

contributions received for evidence of illegality. 11 C.F.R. § 103.3(b). Treasurers must make 

their best efforts to determine the legality of the contribution. Id. § 103.3(b)(1). If the legality of 

the contribution cannot be determined, the treasurer must refund the contribution within 30 days 

of receipt. Id. The Commission’s regulation further states that if the treasurer later discovers that 
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MUR 8043 (Women Vote Smart) 
Conciliation Agreement 
Page 3 of 5 
a contribution is illegal based on new evidence, the treasurer shall refund the contribution within 

thirty days of the date the illegality is discovered. Id. § 103.3(b)(2). 

7. For reporting purposes, the Commission has provided guidance that when 

itemizing contributions that are deposited into a non-contribution account, hybrid committees 

should identify those receipts by entering “Non-Contribution Account” as memo text or in the 

description field. FEC Statement on Carey v. FEC: Reporting Guidance for Political 

Committees that Maintain a Non-Contribution Account (Oct. 5, 2011). 

8. In its 2019 Mid-Year Report, the Committee reported receiving 

$37,575.74 in prohibited contributions that were not designated for its non-contribution account. 

This amount included $13,075.74 from four apparent corporations; $2,000 from two LLCs; and 

$22,500 from two unregistered organizations. 

9.   Respondent contends that of those contributions disclosed as coming 

from corporations, $2,950.73 came from two apparent corporations, while $10,125.00 came from 

two payment processing companies that aggregated individual contributions for the Committee.  

Respondent contends that the latter contributions were disclosed incorrectly as coming from the 

corporations rather than from the individual contributors. 

V. Respondent violated 52 U.S.C. § 30118(a) by knowingly accepting a total of 

$37,575.74 in prohibited contributions into its federal account. 

VI. 1. Respondent will pay a civil penalty to the Federal Election Commission in 

the amount of $5,000 Thousand Dollars ($5,000), pursuant to 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(5)(A), such 

penalty to be paid as follows: 

a).   One initial payment of $2,500 is due within one month of the date 

of this agreement; 
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MUR 8043 (Women Vote Smart) 
Conciliation Agreement 
Page 4 of 5 

b). Thereafter, the remaining $2,500 is due within six months of the 

date of this agreement; 

c). Each such installment shall be paid on the first day of the month in 

which it becomes due; 

d). In the event that any installment payment is not received by the 

Commission by the fifth day of the month in which it becomes due, the Commission may, at its 

discretion, accelerate the remaining payments and cause the entire amount to become due upon 

ten days written notice to the Respondent. Failure by the Commission to accelerate the payments 

with regard to any overdue installment shall not be construed as a waiver of its right to do so 

with regard to future overdue installments; 

2. In ordinary circumstances, the Commission would seek a higher civil 

penalty based on the violation outlined in the Agreement. The Commission is taking into 

account, however, the Committee’s very low cash-on-hand balance, that it is inactive, its 

willingness to correct the affected disclosure reports, and that according to the Committee, it has 

limited ability to raise additional funds and intends to terminate; 

3. Respondent will cease and desist from violating 52 U.S.C. § 30118(a); 

4. Respondent will work with the Reports Analysis Division to correct and 

file its affected reports within 12 months of the effective date of this Agreement; 

5. The Committee will send its treasurer to Commission-sponsored 

compliance training for unauthorized committees within 12 months of the effective date of this 

Agreement; 

6. Respondent will terminate no earlier than 30 days following its fulfillment 

of each of the requirements as set forth in Paragraphs VI.1, 4, and 5 above. 
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VII. The Commission, on request of anyone filing a complaint under 52 U.S.C. 

§ 30109(a)(l ) concerning the matters at issue herein or on its own motion, may review 

compliance with this Agreement. If the Commission believes that this Agreement or any 

requirement thereof has been violated, it may institute a civil action for relief in the United States 

District Comt for the District of Columbia. 

VIII. This Agreement shall become effective as of the date that all paities hereto have 

executed same and the Commission has approved the entire agreement. 

IX. Respondent shall have no more than 30 days from the date this Agreement 

becomes effective to comply with and implement the requirements contained in this Agreement, 

unless another time frame is provided above, and to so notify the Commission. 

X. This Conciliation Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the pa1t ies 

on the matters raised herein, and no other statement, proinise, or agreement, either written or 

oral, made by either paity or by agents of either paity, that is not contained in this written 

Agreement shall be enforceable. 

FOR THE CO:MMISSION: 

Lisa J. Stevenson 
Acting General Digitally signed CharlesCounsel by Charles Kitcher 

Date: 2023.10.19 

BY: 
Kitcher 09:56:43 -04'00' 

Charles Kitcher Date 
Associate General Counsel for Enforcement 

FOR THE RESPONDENT: 
8/ 18/ 2023 

Date 
Name: Amy S. Kremer 
Position: Treasurer, Women Vote Sma1t 
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	Attachment 2 
	FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463 
	‘ 
	                                                                                                                        November 4, 2021   
	Via Electronic Mail Only 
	Via Electronic Mail Only 

	info@womenvotesmartpac.com 
	info@womenvotesmartpac.com 
	info@womenvotesmartpac.com 


	Amy S. Kremer, Treasurer Women Vote Smart P.O. Box 72861 Marietta, GA 30007 
	RE:  RR 21L-63 
	Dear Ms. Kremer: 
	The Federal Election Commission (“Commission”) has ascertained information in the normal course of carrying out its supervisory responsibilities indicating Women Vote Smart and you in your official capacity as treasurer, may have violated the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the “Act”).  The matter has been referred by the Reports Analysis Division to the Commission’s Office of General Counsel for possible enforcement action under 52 U.S.C. § 30109.Specifically, the Committee has been refe
	1 
	totaling $37,575.74 within the permissible timeframe.

	The Act affords you the opportunity to demonstrate in writing that no action should be taken against Women Vote Smart and you in your official capacity as treasurer.  If you wish to file a response, you may submit any factual or legal materials that you believe are relevant to the Commission’s consideration of this matter.  Where appropriate, statements should be submitted under oath by persons with relevant knowledge.  Your response, which should be addressed to the General Counsel’s Office, must be submit
	This matter will remain confidential in accordance with 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(4)(B) and § 30109(a)(12)(A) unless you notify the Commission in writing that you wish the matter to be made public.  Please be advised that, although the Commission cannot disclose information regarding an investigation to the public, it may share information on a confidential basis with other law enforcement agencies.
	2 

	If you intend to be represented by counsel in this matter, please advise the Commission by completing the enclosed form stating the name, address and telephone number of such counsel, and authorizing such counsel to receive any notifications and other communications from the Commission. Please note that you have a legal obligation to preserve all documents, records, and 
	RR 21L-63 Page 2 
	materials relating to the subject matter of the complaint until such time as you are notified that the Commission has closed its file in this matter. See 18 U.S.C. § 1519. 
	Any correspondence sent to the Commission, such as a response, must be addressed to one of the following (note, if submitting via email this Office will provide an electronic receipt by email): 
	Mail 
	Mail 
	Mail 
	OR 
	Email 

	Federal Election Commission Office of Complaints Examination              & Legal Administration Attn:  Christal Dennis, Paralegal 1050 First Street, NE 
	Federal Election Commission Office of Complaints Examination              & Legal Administration Attn:  Christal Dennis, Paralegal 1050 First Street, NE 
	cela@fec.gov 

	Washington, DC 20463 
	Washington, DC 20463 


	As indicated in the FEC’s Notice found at , the office’s mailroom is open on a limited basis and, therefore, processing paper correspondence may be delayed.  Accordingly, we strongly encourage you to file responses and additional correspondence via email. 
	content/documents/status-of-fec-operations.pdf
	https://www.fec.gov/resources/cms
	-


	If you have any questions, please contact Christal Dennis at (202) 694-1519.  For your information, we have enclosed a brief description of the Commission’s procedures for handling complaints. 
	Sincerely, 
	Roy Q. Luckett Acting Associate General Counsel Complaints Examination & Legal Administration 
	Notification of this referral is being provided to you pursuant to the Commission’s Agency Procedure for Notice to Respondents in Non-Complaint Generated Matters, as published in the Federal Register on August 4, 2009 (74 Fed. Reg. 38,617). 
	1 

	The Commission has the statutory authority to refer knowing and willful violations of the Act to the Department of Justice for potential criminal prosecution, 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(5)(C), and to report information regarding violations of law not within its jurisdiction to appropriate law enforcement authorities. Id. § 30107(a)(9). 
	2 
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	1 FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	1 FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	2 
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	4 
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	10 DATE ACTIVATED:  Feb. 25, 2022 
	11 
	12 EXPIRATION OF SOL: Feb. 7-June 30, 2024 
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	14 
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	16 
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	24 INTERNAL REPORTS CHECKED: Disclosure Reports 
	24 INTERNAL REPORTS CHECKED: Disclosure Reports 
	25 

	26 FEDERAL AGENCIES CHECKED: None 
	26 FEDERAL AGENCIES CHECKED: None 
	27 I. INTRODUCTION 
	28 The Reports Analysis Division (“RAD”) referred Women Vote Smart and Amy S. Kremer 
	29 in her official capacity as treasurer (the “Committee”) to the Office of General Counsel (“OGC”) 
	30 for the receipt of prohibited contributions during the 2019 calendar year totaling $37,575.74.
	2 

	31 The Committee did not respond to the Referral and has not amended its disclosure reports to 
	32 reflect refunds or corrections. 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	On March 21, 2022, RAD amended RR 21L-63 to remove a duplicate listing for the “Republican Women of 

	Cary” in the chart on Attachment 2 to the referral. On April 4, 2022, Complaints Examination & Legal 
	Cary” in the chart on Attachment 2 to the referral. On April 4, 2022, Complaints Examination & Legal 

	Administration (“CELA”) emailed a notification of the Amended Referral to the Respondent, and on April 6 mailed 
	Administration (“CELA”) emailed a notification of the Amended Referral to the Respondent, and on April 6 mailed 

	the notification to the mailing address for the Committee and Committee treasurer. See Email from Christal Dennis, 
	the notification to the mailing address for the Committee and Committee treasurer. See Email from Christal Dennis, 

	CELA, FEC, to Amy S. Kremer, Treasurer, Women Vote Smart (Apr. 4, 2022, 7:00 PM EDT). 
	CELA, FEC, to Amy S. Kremer, Treasurer, Women Vote Smart (Apr. 4, 2022, 7:00 PM EDT). 

	2 
	2 
	Referral (Nov. 3, 2021); Amended Referral (Nov. 3, 2021). This Report will refer to the Amended Referral 

	as the “Referral.” 
	as the “Referral.” 
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	1 For the reasons discussed below, we recommend that the Commission open a MUR, find 2 reason to believe that the Committee violated 52 U.S.C. § 30118(a), authorize pre-probable cause 3 conciliation with the Committee, and approve the attached conciliation agreement containing a 4 civil penalty 5 II. FACTUAL BACKGROUND 6 Women Vote Smart is registered with the Commission as a non-connected multicandidate 7 hybrid committee.Amy S. Kremer has been the Committee’s treasurer since February 20, 8 2019.On its Ame
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	1 
	did not indicate that these contributions were deposited into its non-contribution account, either as 

	2 
	2 
	memo text or in the description field,9 it appeared that the conti·ibutions were improperly 

	3 
	3 
	deposited into the Committee's federal account. 

	4 
	4 
	The cha1t below itemizes the apparent impennissible conti·ibutions. 


	Contribution From 
	Contribution From 
	Contribution From 
	Date 
	Amount 
	Prohibited Amount 

	Corporations: 
	Corporations: 

	America First Policies, fuc. 
	America First Policies, fuc. 
	3/4/2019 
	$450.74 

	Event Bright 
	Event Bright 
	6/6/2019 
	$805 

	Event Bright 
	Event Bright 
	6/13/2019 
	$360 

	Event Bri!!ht 
	Event Bri!!ht 
	6/20/2019 
	$420 

	Square, fuc. 
	Square, fuc. 
	6/30/2019 
	$8,540 

	Watson's, fuc. 
	Watson's, fuc. 
	5/14/2019 
	$500 

	Watson's. fuc. 
	Watson's. fuc. 
	6/24/2019 
	$2 000 

	Subtotal: 
	Subtotal: 
	$13,075.74 

	LLCs: 
	LLCs: 

	Joyce Prope1ties LLC 
	Joyce Prope1ties LLC 
	5/14/2019 
	$1,000 

	Sellers Real Estate LLC 
	Sellers Real Estate LLC 
	5/28/2019 
	$1,000 

	Subtotal: 
	Subtotal: 
	$2 000 

	U nre2istered Or2anizations: 
	U nre2istered Or2anizations: 

	Reoublican Women ofCarv 
	Reoublican Women ofCarv 
	3/12/2019 
	$3 500 

	Women For America First 
	Women For America First 
	2/7/2019 
	$19,000 

	Subtotal: 
	Subtotal: 
	$22,500 

	Grand Total Prohibited Amount Not Refunded: 
	Grand Total Prohibited Amount Not Refunded: 
	$37,575.74 


	5 6 On May 19, 2020, RAD sent the Committee a Request for Additional fufonnation 
	7 ("RF AI") referencing the questionable conti·ibutions appearing on the 2019 Mid-Year Repo1t. 
	10 

	8 The RF AI included a list ofthe possible prohibited contributions and suggested that "[i]f the 
	9 amounts in question were deposited into [the] Committee's Non-Conti-ibution Account" the 
	See infra pages 6-7 ( discussing Commission guidance regarding proper repo1t ing by hybrid committees); 
	9 

	Press Release, FEC Statement on Carey v. FEC: Repo1t ing Guidance for Political Committees that Maintain a Non­
	Contribution Account, FEC.GOV (Oct. 5, 2011). We note that the Committee's 2019 Mid-Year Repo1t shows that it 
	added the contribution amounts from prohibited sources to the Detailed Summary Page Fo1m 3X, Line 17 "Other 
	Receipts" as it should have, however, when itemizing those contributions on Schedule A, the report failed to state 
	"Non-Contribution Account" in the description for those receipts. See Women Vote Smart, 2019 Mid-Year Repo1t at 
	10, 15-16, 19, 21-23 (July 31, 2019). 
	Amended Refen-al at 2; Women Vote Smart, RFAI (May 19, 2020) (referencing 2019 Mid-Year Repo1t). 
	10 

	RR 21L-63 (Women Vote Smart) First General Counsel’s Report Page 4 of 10 
	1 Committee should amend its report listing “Non-Contribution Account in the description field or 2 in memo text.”  Between July 2020 and November 2021, the RAD analyst attempted to contact 3 the Committee’s current and past treasurers by telephone and email to obtain a response to the 4 RFAI.  During two phone calls before the Referral, the Committee’s current treasurer, Kremer, 5 acknowledged receiving a voicemail regarding the referrable issue, and indicated that the 6 7 After the Referral, Kremer spoke 
	11
	12
	Committee abruptly shut down and has been inactive since filing its 2019 Mid-Year Report.
	13 

	10 receipts identified in the RFAI.To date, the Committee has not responded to the RFAI or to the 11 
	14 
	notifications of the Referral by amending its disclosure reports or refunding the contributions.
	15 

	Women Vote Smart, RFAI at 1 (May 19, 2020) (referencing the Commission’s “Reporting Guidance for Political Committees that Maintain a Non-Contribution Account”). 
	11 

	12 Amended Referral at 2-4 13 The Committee’s website, www.womenvotetrump.com, is no longer active and a search of the internet archive indicates that the website has not 
	been functioning since January 24, 2021. See Women Vote Smart, Amended Statement of Organization at 1 (June 26, 2019); see 401 Authorization Required, WOMEN FOR TRUMP[]. 
	, https://womenfortrump.com (Jan. 24, 2021) 
	https://web.archive.org/web/20210101000000
	https://web.archive.org/web/20210101000000
	*/ https:/womenfortrump.com/


	14 
	15 
	OGC sent the Committee a notification of the Referral on November 4, 2021, by email to the Committee’s last known email address listed on its Statement of Organization.  Letter from Roy Q. Luckett, Acting Assistant Gen. Couns., CELA, FEC, to Amy S. Kremer, Treasurer, Women Vote Smart (Nov. 4, 2021). On April 4 and 6, 2022, OGC sent a copy of the Amended Referral to the Committee’s email and post office box addresses, and mailed a copy to the treasurer’s address. See Email from Christal Dennis, CELA, FEC, to
	Figure
	RR 21L-63 (Women Vote Smart) First General Counsel’s Report Page 5 of 10 
	1 Consistent with the treasurer’s statement that the Committee is inactive, the Committee 2 has not filed any additional reports since its 2019 Year-End Report.  The Committee has since 3 been subject to numerous Administrative Fine (“AF”) matters for failure to file disclosure reports 4 and has $49,214 in outstanding penalties assessed through the AF program that have yet to be 5 paid.6 III. LEGAL ANALYSIS 7 Under the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the “Act”), corporations 8 are prohibi
	16
	17 

	10 such Under Commission regulations, a contribution from an LLC is permissible 11 if the LLC is treated as a partnership for tax purposes and has not elected to be treated as a 12 LLCs that claim corporate status or those that are 13 publicly traded are treated as corporations for purposes of the Act.14 A political committee’s treasurer is responsible for examining all contributions received 15 Treasurers must make their best efforts to determine the legality of 
	contributions.
	18 
	corporation by the Internal Revenue Service.
	19 
	20 
	for evidence of illegality.
	21 

	Supra note 13 and accompanying text. 
	16 

	Women Vote Smart, AF 4244 (Mar. 23, 2022) ($11,786 civil penalty for non-filing 2021 Mid-Year); AF 4199 (Dec. 2, 2021) ($8,418 civil penalty for non-filing 2020 Year-End); AF 4101 (Oct. 22, 2021) ($8,418 civil penalty for non-filing 2020 Post-General); AF 3952 (Aug. 12, 2021) ($7,395 civil penalty for non-filing 2020 October Quarterly); AF 3907 (July 16, 2021) ($6,656 civil penalty for non-filing 2020 July Quarterly); AF 3833 (Jan. 7, 2021) ($6,541 civil penalty for non-filing 2020 April Quarterly). Four of
	17 
	-

	52 U.S.C. § 30118(a); 11 C.F.R. § 114.2(a), (b)(1). 
	18 

	11 C.F.R. § 110.1(g). 
	19 

	Id. § 110.1(g)(3). 
	20 

	Id. § 103.3(b). 
	21 

	RR 21L-63 (Women Vote Smart) First General Counsel’s Report Page 6 of 10 
	1 If the legality of the contribution cannot be determined, the treasurer must 2 3 Pursuant to Carey v. FEC, a hybrid political committee, which makes both independent 4 expenditures and direct contributions, can accept unlimited and corporate contributions but must 5 maintain a separate non-contribution account for the purpose of making independent expenditures 6 and a separate contribution account that is subject to the Act’s amount and source limitations from 7   The Commission has also issued guidance 8
	the contribution.
	22 
	refund the contribution within 30 days of receipt.
	23 
	which to make contributions to federal candidates.
	24
	25

	10 non-connected political committees for the purpose of making contributions to candidates and 
	11 political parties as long as:  (1) the political committee deposits such contributions in a “Non
	-

	12 Contribution Account,” which is for “the purpose of financing independent expenditures, other 
	13 advertisements that refer to a Federal candidate, and generic voter drives”; (2) that account is 
	14 “segregated from any accounts that receive source-restricted and amount-limited contributions”; 
	15 and (3) each account pays a percentage of administrative expenses that closely corresponds to the 
	Id. § 103.3(b)(1). 
	22 

	Id.  The Commission’s regulation further states that if the treasurer later discovers that a contribution is illegal based on new evidence, the treasurer shall refund the contribution within thirty days of the date the illegality is discovered. Id. § 103.3(b)(2). 
	23 

	Carey v. FEC, 791 F. Supp. 2d 121 (D.D.C. 2011) (granting limited preliminary injunction enjoining Commission from enforcing 52 U.S.C. § 30116(a)(1)(C) and (a)(3) with regard to contributions received for independent expenditures by a non-connected political committee if such committee:  (1) maintains a “soft money” account for use in making independent expenditures in federal elections and a separate “hard money” account that accepts contributions subject to “statutory contribution limits” for making contr
	24 

	See Press Release, FEC Statement on Carey v. FEC: Reporting Guidance for Political Committees that Maintain a Non-Contribution Account, FEC.GOV (Oct. 5, 2011), (requiring non-connected committees that make independent expenditures to maintain a separate “contribution” account to be able to make contributions to federal candidates from receipts that are subject to the Act’s limitations and source prohibitions). 
	25 
	carey-fec/ 
	https://www fec.gov/updates/fec-statement-on
	-



	RR 21L-63 (Women Vote Smart) First General Counsel’s Report Page 7 of 10 
	1   The guidance also provided instructions for reporting 2 the receipt of contributions deposited into a Non-Contribution Account, stating that a committee:  3 (1) should disclose such contributions on “Line 17 of Form 3X, titled ‘Other Federal 4 Receipts,’” and (2) “when itemizing on Schedule A, electronic filers should identify those receipts 5 by entering ‘Non-Contribution Account’ as memo text or in the description field.”6 Accordingly, the Committee, as a hybrid committee, could not accept contributio
	percentage of activity for that account.
	26
	27 
	June 2019, the Committee received $37,575.74 in apparent prohibited contributions that were not 

	10 designated for its non-contribution account.  That amount included contributions from four 11   Further, 12 RAD identified contributions from two LLCs whose tax status was unknown and contributions 13 from two unregistered organizations, Republican Women of Cary and Women for America First, 14 where there was no information as to whether the contributions were made with permissible 15 funds, such as from political party committees or PACs. 16 Pursuant to the Commission’s guidance, RAD sent the Committee 
	corporations, which were apparently prohibited from the face of the contributions.
	28
	response.
	29

	Id. Id. Supra page 3. The Commission has provided the Committee with numerous opportunities to address the receipt of the 
	26 
	27 
	28 
	29 

	apparent prohibited contributions, including the May 2020 RFAI and the notice of the Referral.  Supra pages 3-4; see 
	apparent prohibited contributions, including the May 2020 RFAI and the notice of the Referral.  Supra pages 3-4; see 
	We note that the Committee appears aware of the procedures for designating contributions into its non-contribution account because it did so in previous reports filed with the Commission. See, e.g., Women Vote Smart, Amended 2018 Year-End Report at 15 (Feb. 15, 2019) (designating an individual contribution for non-contribution account); Women Vote Smart, Amended 2018 October Quarterly Report at 6-15 (Oct. 16, 2018) (designating various individual contributions for the non-contribution account). 
	30 
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	1 
	1 
	Committee’s non-contribution account, it appears that the Committee deposited contributions 

	2 
	2 
	from prohibited sources into its federal account.  The Committee has not, to date, reported having 

	3 
	3 
	issued any refunds for those contributions.30 

	4 
	4 
	Accordingly, under the circumstances described above, we recommend that the 

	5 
	5 
	Commission open a MUR and find reason to believe that the Committee violated 52 U.S.C. 

	6 
	6 
	§ 30118(a) by knowingly accepting prohibited contributions.31 


	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 
	also Amended Referral at 4; 
	31 
	The Commission recently accepted negotiated settlement agreements with two hybrid committees with non-contribution accounts for, among other things, various reporting errors. See Certification, ADR Case # 1064 (Latino Victory Fund) (Mar. 31, 2022) (The committee disclosed direct contributions to federal candidates and committees while it did not appear to have sufficient funds in its federal account to support the contributions, but later clarified that it did, in fact, have sufficient funds in the federal 
	RR 21L-63 (Women Vote Smart) First General Counsel’s Report Page 9 of 10 
	Women Vote Smart, Amended Statement of Organization at 2 (June 26, 2019); see also 52 U.S.C. § 30101(4)(A); 11 C.F.R. § 100.5(e)(3). 
	3 

	Women Vote Smart, Amended Statement of Organization at 1 (Feb. 20, 2019). 
	4 

	Stipulated Order and Consent Judgment, Civ. No. 11-259 RMC (D.D.C. Aug. 29, 2011). 
	5 

	See Women Vote Smart, Amended Statement of Organization at 5 (Dec. 3, 2018) (FEC Miscellaneous Text Related to a Report, Schedule or Itemization (FEC Form F1A) (stating intent to establish a separate account “to deposit and withdraw funds raised in unlimited amounts from individuals, corporations, labor organizations, and/or other political committees”). 
	6 

	Id. 
	7 

	Amended Referral, Attach. 2. 
	8 

	1 2 3 

	4 IV. RECOMMENDATIONS 
	4 IV. RECOMMENDATIONS 
	5 
	5 
	5 
	1. Open a Matter Under Review; 

	6 
	6 
	2. Find reason to believe that Women Vote Smart and Amy S. Kremer in her official 7 capacity as treasurer violated 52 U.S.C. § 30118(a) by knowingly accepting 8 prohibited contributions; 

	9 
	9 
	3. Approve the attached Factual and Legal Analysis; 

	10 
	10 
	4. Authorize conciliation prior to a finding of probable cause to believe; 

	11 
	11 
	5. Approve the attached Conciliation Agreement; and 


	Figure
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	1 6. Approve the appropriate letter. 
	2 3 4 5 6 
	7 8 
	9 June 172022 10 Date 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 Attachments: 
	2 

	24 1. Factual and Legal Analysis 25 
	Lisa J. Stevenson Acting General Counsel 
	Charles Kitcher Associate General Counsel for Enforcement 
	r~/byAPW 
	Jin Lee Deputy Associate General Counsel for Enforcement 
	Figure
	Ana J. Pena-Wallace Assistant General Counsel 
	Ana J. Pena-Wallace Assistant General Counsel 


	Figure
	Christine C. Gallagher Attorney 
	1 FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 2 FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS 3 4 RESPONDENT:  Women Vote Smart and Amy S. Kremer MUR ____ 5         in her official capacity as treasurer 6 7 I. INTRODUCTION 
	8 This matter arises from a Reports Analysis Division (“RAD”) Referral stating that Women 
	9 Vote Smart and Amy S. Kremer in her official capacity as treasurer (the “Committee”) accepted 10 11 refunded, in violation of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the “Act”).12 The Committee did not respond to the Referral. 13 For the reasons discussed below, the Commission finds reason to believe that the 14 Committee violated 52 U.S.C. § 30118(a).  15 II. FACTUAL BACKGROUND 16 Women Vote Smart is registered with the Commission as a non-connected multicandidate 17 hybrid committee.Amy S
	prohibited contributions during the 2019 calendar year totaling $37,575.74, which have not been 
	1 
	2 
	3 
	4 
	5 

	Related to a Report, Schedule or Itemization (FEC Form F1A) (stating intent to establish a separate account “to 
	ATTACHMENT 1 Page 1 of 7 
	MUR ______ (Women Vote Smart) Factual and Legal Analysis Page 2 of 7 
	1 “[t]he funds maintained in this separate account will not be used to make contributions, whether 2 direct, in-kind, or via coordinated communications, or coordinated expenditures, to federal 3 candidates or committees.”4 According to the Referral, the Committee received apparent prohibited contributions 5 totaling $ from four corporations, two limited liability companies (“LLCs”), and two 6 unregistered organizations as disclosed on its 2019 Mid-Year Report.Because the Committee 7 did not indicate that th
	6 
	37,575.74
	7 
	8

	10 The chart below itemizes the apparent impermissible contributions. 
	deposit and withdraw funds raised in unlimited amounts from individuals, corporations, labor organizations, and/or other political committees”). 
	See infra page 6 (discussing Commission guidance regarding proper reporting by hybrid committees); Press Release, FEC Statement on Carey v. FEC: Reporting Guidance for Political Committees that Maintain a Non-Contribution Account, FEC.GOV (Oct. 5, 2011). We note that the Committee’s 2019 Mid-Year Report shows that it added the contribution amounts from prohibited sources to the Detailed Summary Page Form 3X, Line 17 “Other Receipts” as it should have, however, when itemizing those contributions on Schedule 
	8 
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	Contribution From 
	Contribution From 
	Contribution From 
	Date 
	Prohibited Amount 
	Prohibited Amount 

	Corporations: 
	Corporations: 

	America First Policies, fuc. 
	America First Policies, fuc. 
	3/4/2019 
	$450.74 

	Event Bri!!ht 
	Event Bri!!ht 
	6/6/2019 
	$805 

	Event Bright 
	Event Bright 
	6/13/2019 
	$360 

	Event Bright 
	Event Bright 
	6/20/2019 
	$420 

	Sauare. fuc. 
	Sauare. fuc. 
	6/30/2019 
	$8 540 

	Watson's, fuc. 
	Watson's, fuc. 
	5/14/2019 
	$500 

	Watson's, fuc. 
	Watson's, fuc. 
	6/24/2019 
	$2,000 

	Subtotal: $13,075.74 
	Subtotal: $13,075.74 
	$13,075.74 

	LLCs: 
	LLCs: 

	Joyce Prope1iies LLC 
	Joyce Prope1iies LLC 
	5/14/2019 
	$1,000 

	Sellers Real Estate LLC 
	Sellers Real Estate LLC 
	5/28/2019 
	$1,000 

	Subtotal: $2,000 
	Subtotal: $2,000 
	$2,000 

	U nreidstered Or2anizations: 
	U nreidstered Or2anizations: 

	Republican Women of Cary 
	Republican Women of Cary 
	3/12/2019 
	$3,500 

	Women For America First 
	Women For America First 
	2/7/2019 
	$19,000 

	Subtotal: 
	Subtotal: 
	$22,500 

	Grand Total Prohibited Amount Not Refunded: 
	Grand Total Prohibited Amount Not Refunded: 
	$37,575.74 


	1 
	1 
	1 

	2 
	2 
	On May 19, 2020, RAD sent the Committee a Request for Additional fufonnation 

	3 
	3 
	9("RF AI") referencing the questionable contributions appearing on the 2019 Mid-Year Repo1i . 

	4 
	4 
	The RFAI included a list ofthe possible prohibited contributions and suggested that "[i]fthe 

	5 
	5 
	amounts in question were deposited into [the] Committee's Non-Contribution Account" the 

	6 
	6 
	Committee should amend its repo1i listing "Non-Contribution Account in the description field or 

	7 
	7 
	in memo text." 10 
	Between July 2020 and November 2021, the RAD analyst attempted to contact 

	8 
	8 
	the Committee's cunent and past treasurers by telephone and email to obtain a response to the 

	9 
	9 
	RFAI.11 
	During two phone calls before the Refenal, the Committee's cmTent treasurer, Kremer, 

	10 
	10 
	acknowledged receiving a voicemail regarding the refe1Table issue, and indicated that the 

	TR
	9 
	Amended Refen-al at 2; Women Vote Smart, RFAI (May 19, 2020) (referencing 2019 Mid-Year Report). 

	TR
	10 
	Women Vote Smart, RFAI at 1 (May 19, 2020) (referencing the Commission's "Reporting Guidance for 

	TR
	Political Committees that Maintain a Non-Contribution Account"). 

	TR
	11 
	Amended Refen-al at 2-4. 

	TR
	ATTACHMENT 1 

	TR
	Page 3 of7 


	MUR ______ (Women Vote Smart) Factual and Legal Analysis Page 4 of 7 
	1 
	Committee abruptly shut down and has been inactive since filing its 2019 Mid-Year Report.
	12 

	2 After the Referral, Kremer spoke with RAD by phone about the 2019 Mid-Year Report and 
	3 indicated that the contributions from Eventbrite and Square, Inc., were aggregated receipts from 
	4 the sale of tickets and merchandise, and that she would work on identifying the sources of the 
	5 receipts identified in the RFAI. To date, the Committee has not responded to the RFAI or to the 
	6 
	notifications of the Referral by amending its disclosure reports or refunding the contributions.
	13 

	7 Consistent with the treasurer’s statement that the Committee is inactive, the Committee 
	14

	8 has not filed any additional reports since its 2019 Year-End Report.  The Committee has since 
	9 been subject to numerous Administrative Fine (“AF”) matters for failure to file disclosure reports 
	10 and has $49,214 in outstanding penalties assessed through the AF program that have yet to be 
	11 paid.
	15 

	The Committee’s website, , is no longer active and a search of the internet archive indicates that the website has not been functioning since January 24, 2021. See Women Vote Smart, Amended Statement of Organization at 1 (June 26, 2019); see 401 Authorization Required, WOMEN FOR TRUMP, ]. 
	12 
	www.womenvotetrump.com
	www.womenvotetrump.com

	https://womenfortrump.com (Jan. 24, 2021) [
	/
	https://web.archive.org/web/20210101000000*/ 
	https:/womenfortrump.com


	OGC sent the Committee a notification of the Referral on November 4, 2021, by email to the Committee’s last known email address listed on its Statement of Organization.  Letter from Roy Q. Luckett, Acting Assistant Gen. Couns., CELA, FEC, to Amy S. Kremer, Treasurer, Women Vote Smart (Nov. 4, 2021). On April 4 and 6, 2022, OGC sent a copy of the Amended Referral to the Committee’s email and post office box addresses, and mailed a copy to the treasurer’s address. See Email from Christal Dennis, CELA, FEC, to
	13 

	Supra note 12 and accompanying text. 
	14 

	Women Vote Smart, AF 4244 (Mar. 23, 2022) ($11,786 civil penalty for non-filing 2021 Mid-Year); AF 4199 (Dec. 2, 2021) ($8,418 civil penalty for non-filing 2020 Year-End); AF 4101 (Oct. 22, 2021) ($8,418 civil penalty for non-filing 2020 Post-General); AF 3952 (Aug. 12, 2021) ($7,395 civil penalty for non-filing 2020 October Quarterly); AF 3907 (July 16, 2021) ($6,656 civil penalty for non-filing 2020 July Quarterly); AF 3833 (Jan. 7, 2021) ($6,541 civil penalty for non-filing 2020 April Quarterly).  Four o
	15 

	ATTACHMENT 1 Page 4 of 7 
	MUR ______ (Women Vote Smart) Factual and Legal Analysis Page 5 of 7 
	1 III. LEGAL ANALYSIS 2 Under the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the “Act”), corporations 3 are prohibited from making contributions to federal candidates or their authorized committees, 4 and candidates and authorized committees are prohibited from knowingly receiving or accepting 5 such Under Commission regulations, a contribution from an LLC is permissible 6 if the LLC is treated as a partnership for tax purposes and has not elected to be treated as a 7 LLCs that claim corporate statu
	contributions.
	16 
	corporation by the Internal Revenue Service.
	17 
	18 

	10 Treasurers must make their best efforts to determine the legality of 11 If the legality of the contribution cannot be determined, the treasurer must 12 13 Pursuant to Carey v. FEC, a hybrid political committee, which makes both independent 14 expenditures and direct contributions, can accept unlimited and corporate contributions but must 15 maintain a separate non-contribution account for the purpose of making independent expenditures 16 and a separate contribution account that is subject to the Act’s am
	for evidence of illegality.
	19 
	the contribution.
	20 
	refund the contribution within 30 days of receipt.
	21 

	52 U.S.C. § 30118(a); 11 C.F.R. § 114.2(a), (b)(1). 11 C.F.R. § 110.1(g). Id. § 110.1(g)(3). Id. § 103.3(b). Id. § 103.3(b)(1). Id.  The Commission’s regulation further states that if the treasurer later discovers that a contribution is 
	16 
	17 
	18 
	19 
	20 
	21 

	illegal based on new evidence, the treasurer shall refund the contribution within thirty days of the date the illegality is discovered. Id. § 103.3(b)(2). ATTACHMENT 1 Page 5 of 7 
	MUR ______ (Women Vote Smart) Factual and Legal Analysis Page 6 of 7 
	1   The Commission has also issued guidance 2 on the formation and operation of hybrid political committees  and explained that the 3 Commission would not enforce the corporate contribution ban and the limitation amounts against 4 non-connected political committees for the purpose of making contributions to candidates and 5 political parties as long as:  (1) the political committee deposits such contributions in a “Non6 Contribution Account,” which is for “the purpose of financing independent expenditures, 
	which to make contributions to federal candidates.
	22
	23
	-

	10   The guidance also provided instructions for reporting 11 the receipt of contributions deposited into a Non-Contribution Account, stating that a committee:  12 (1) should disclose such contributions on “Line 17 of Form 3X, titled ‘Other Federal 13 Receipts,’” and (2) “when itemizing on Schedule A, electronic filers should identify those receipts 14 by entering ‘Non-Contribution Account’ as memo text or in the description field.”15 Accordingly, the Committee, as a hybrid committee, could not accept contr
	percentage of activity for that account.
	24
	25 

	Carey v. FEC, 791 F. Supp. 2d 121 (D.D.C. 2011) (granting limited preliminary injunction enjoining Commission from enforcing 52 U.S.C. § 30116(a)(1)(C) and (a)(3) with regard to contributions received for independent expenditures by a non-connected political committee if such committee:  (1) maintains a “soft money” account for use in making independent expenditures in federal elections and a separate “hard money” account that accepts contributions subject to “statutory contribution limits” for making contr
	22 

	See Press Release, FEC Statement on Carey v. FEC: Reporting Guidance for Political Committees that Maintain a Non-Contribution Account, FEC.GOV (Oct. 5, 2011), (requiring non-connected committees that make independent expenditures to maintain a separate “contribution” account to be able to make contributions to federal candidates from receipts that are subject to the Act’s limitations and source prohibitions). 
	23 
	carey-fec/ 
	https://www fec.gov/updates/fec-statement-on
	-



	Id. Id. 
	24 
	25 
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	1 
	1 
	in the Referral, the Committee’s 2019 Mid-Year Report disclosed that, from February through 

	2 
	2 
	June 2019, the Committee received $37,575.74 in apparent prohibited contributions that were not 

	3 
	3 
	designated for its non-contribution account.  That amount included contributions from four 

	4 
	4 
	corporations, which were apparently prohibited from the face of the contributions.26
	  Further, 

	5 
	5 
	RAD identified contributions from two LLCs whose tax status was unknown and contributions 

	6 
	6 
	from two unregistered organizations, Republican Women of Cary and Women for America First, 

	7 
	7 
	where there was no information as to whether the contributions were made with permissible 

	8 
	8 
	funds, such as from political party committees or PACs. 

	9 
	9 
	Pursuant to the Commission’s guidance, RAD sent the Committee an RFAI specifically 

	10 
	10 
	addressing contributions from apparent prohibited sources disclosed on the Committee’s 2019 

	11 
	11 
	Mid-Year Report, but the Committee has not provided any clarification or correction of the issue 

	12 
	12 
	in response.27 Without further clarification that these receipts were actually deposited into the 

	13 
	13 
	Committee’s non-contribution account, it appears that the Committee deposited contributions 

	14 
	14 
	from prohibited sources into its federal account.  The Committee has not, to date, reported having 

	15 
	15 
	issued any refunds for those contributions.28 

	16 
	16 
	Therefore, the Commission finds reason to believe that Women Vote Smart and Amy S. 

	17 
	17 
	Kremer in her official capacity as treasurer violated 52 U.S.C. § 30118(a) by knowingly accepting 

	18 
	18 
	prohibited contributions. 

	TR
	26 Supra page 2. 27 The Commission has provided the Committee with numerous opportunities to address the receipt of the apparent prohibited contributions, including the May 2020 RFAI and the notice of the Referral.  Supra pages 3-4; see also Amended Referral at 4. 28 We note that the Committee appears aware of the procedures for designating contributions into its non-contribution account because it did so in previous reports filed with the Commission.  See, e.g., Women Vote Smart, Amended 2018 Year-End Repo


	BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	In the Matter of ) 
	) RAD REFERRAL 21L-63 Women Vote Smaii and Amy S. ) Kremer in her official capacity as ) treasurer ) 
	CERTIFICATION 
	I, Vicktoria J. Allen, recording secretaiy for the Federal Election Commission executive session on July 26, 2022, do hereby ce1iify that the Commission decided by a vote of 6-0 to take the following action in RAD Refe1Tal 21L-63: MUR8043 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Open a Matter Under Review. 

	2. 
	2. 
	Find reason to believe that Women Vote Smaii and Amy S. Kremer in her official capacity as treasurer violated 52 U.S.C. § 30118(a) by knowingly accepting prohibited contributions. 

	3. 
	3. 
	Approve the Factual and Legal Analysis, as recommended in the First General Counsel's Repo1i dated June 17, 2022. 

	4. 
	4. 
	Authorize conciliation prior to a finding ofprobable cause to believe. 

	5. 
	5. 
	Approve the Conciliation Agreement, as recommended in the First General Counsel's Repo1i dated June 17, 2022. Commissioners Broussai·d, Cooksey, Dickerson, Trainor, Walther, and Weintraub voted 


	affmnatively for the decision. Attest: 
	ViCktOri a J A 11 en ~;~~ally signed by Vicktoria J 
	Date: 2022.07.29 17:32:16-04'00' 

	July 29, 2022 Date Vicktoria J. Allen Acting Deputy Secreta1y ofthe Commission 
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	FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION Washington, DC 20463 
	August 4, 2022 
	RAD Referral 21L-63 and Amended Referral (Nov. 3, 2021) (Women Vote Smart). 
	1 

	Women Vote Smart, Amended Statement of Organization at 2 (June 26, 2019); see also 52 U.S.C. § 30101(4)(A); 11 C.F.R. § 100.5(e)(3). Women Vote Smart, Amended Statement of Organization at 1 (Feb. 20, 2019). Stipulated Order and Consent Judgment, Civ. No. 11-259 RMC (D.D.C. Aug. 29, 2011). See Women Vote Smart, Amended Statement of Organization at 5 (Dec. 3, 2018) (FEC Miscellaneous Text 
	2 
	3 
	4 
	5 

	Id. 
	6 

	Amended Referral, Attach. 2. 
	7 

	Via Electronic Mail & First Class Mail 
	Via Electronic Mail & First Class Mail 
	Via Electronic Mail & First Class Mail 

	info@womenvotesmartpac.com 
	info@womenvotesmartpac.com 
	info@womenvotesmartpac.com 
	info@amykremer.com 
	info@womenvotetrump.com 


	Amy S. Kremer, Treasurer Women Vote Smart P.O. Box 72861 Marietta, GA 30007 
	Re: MUR 8043 (RR 21L-63)
	       Women Vote Smart 
	Dear Ms. Kremer: 
	In the normal course of carrying out its supervisory responsibilities, the Federal Election Commission became aware of information suggesting Women Vote Smart and you in your official capacity as treasurer (the “Committee”), may have violated the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the “Act”).  On July 26, 2022, the Commission found reason to believe that the Committee violated 52 U.S.C. § 30118(a) by knowingly accepting  prohibited contributions.  The Factual and Legal Analysis, which formed
	 In order to expedite the resolution of this matter, the Commission has authorized the Office of the General Counsel to enter into negotiations directed towards reaching a conciliation agreement in settlement of this matter prior to a finding of probable cause to believe. Preprobable cause conciliation is not mandated by the Act or the Commission’s regulations, but is a voluntary step in the enforcement process that the Commission is offering to you as a way to resolve this matter at an early stage and with
	-

	Accordingly, enclosed is a conciliation agreement that the Commission has approved in settlement of this matter. 
	If you agree with the provisions of the enclosed agreement, please sign and return it, along with the civil penalty, to the Commission.  In light of the fact that conciliation negotiations, prior to a finding of probable cause to believe, are limited to a maximum of 60 
	MUR 8043 (Women Vote Smart) Amy S. Kremer, Treasurer Page 2 
	days, you should respond to this notification as soon as possible.  Accordingly, if you are interested in engaging in pre-probable cause conciliation negotiations, please contact Christine 
	C.within seven days of receipt of this letter. 
	Gallagher, the attorney assigned to this matter, at (202) 694-1505 or cgallagher@fec.gov, 

	During conciliation, you may submit any factual or legal materials that you believe are relevant to the resolution of this matter.  Because the Commission only enters into pre-probable cause conciliation in matters that it believes have a reasonable opportunity for settlement, we may proceed to the next step in the enforcement process if a mutually acceptable conciliation agreement cannot be reached within 60 days.  See 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a), 11 C.F.R. Part 111 (Subpart A). Conversely, if you are not interes
	Pre-probable cause conciliation, extensions of time, and other enforcement procedures and options are discussed more comprehensively in the Commission’s “Guidebook for Complainants and Respondents on the FEC Enforcement Process,” which is available on the Commission’s website at . This matter will remain confidential in accordance with 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(4)(B) and 30109(a)(12)(A) unless you notify the Commission in writing that you wish the matter to be made public.  
	http://www.fec.gov/respondent.guide.pdf
	http://www.fec.gov/respondent.guide.pdf


	We look forward to your response. 
	On behalf of the Commission, Allen Dickerson 
	Chairman Enclosures Factual and Legal Analysis 
	Figure
	Figure
	1 FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 2 FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS 3 4 RESPONDENT:  Women Vote Smart and Amy S. Kremer 5         in her official capacity as treasurer 6 7 I. INTRODUCTION 
	MUR 8043 
	8 This matter arises from a Reports Analysis Division (“RAD”) Referral stating that Women 
	9 Vote Smart and Amy S. Kremer in her official capacity as treasurer (the “Committee”) accepted 10 11 refunded, in violation of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the “Act”).12 The Committee did not respond to the Referral. 13 For the reasons discussed below, the Commission finds reason to believe that the 14 Committee violated 52 U.S.C. § 30118(a). 15 II. FACTUAL BACKGROUND 16 Women Vote Smart is registered with the Commission as a non-connected multicandidate 17 hybrid committee.  Amy 
	prohibited contributions during the 2019 calendar year totaling $37,575.74, which have not been 
	1 
	2
	3 
	4 
	5 

	Related to a Report, Schedule or Itemization (FEC Form F1A) (stating intent to establish a separate account “to 
	MUR 8043 (Women Vote Smart) Factual and Legal Analysis Page 2 of 7 
	1 “[t]he funds maintained in this separate account will not be used to make contributions, whether 2 direct, in-kind, or via coordinated communications, or coordinated expenditures, to federal 3 candidates or committees.”4 According to the Referral, the Committee received apparent prohibited contributions 5 totaling $ from four corporations, two limited liability companies (“LLCs”), and two 6 unregistered organizations as disclosed on its 2019 Mid-Year Report.Because the Committee 7 did not indicate that th
	6 
	37,575.74
	7 
	8

	10 The chart below itemizes the apparent impermissible contributions. 
	deposit and withdraw funds raised in unlimited amounts from individuals, corporations, labor organizations, and/or other political committees”). 
	See infra page 6 (discussing Commission guidance regarding proper reporting by hybrid committees); Press Release, FEC Statement on Carey v. FEC: Reporting Guidance for Political Committees that Maintain a Non-Contribution Account, FEC.GOV (Oct. 5, 2011). We note that the Committee’s 2019 Mid-Year Report shows that it added the contribution amounts from prohibited sources to the Detailed Summary Page Form 3X, Line 17 “Other Receipts” as it should have, however, when itemizing those contributions on Schedule 
	8 

	MUR 8043 (Women Vote Smart) Factual and Legal Analysis Page 3 of7 
	Contribution From 
	Contribution From 
	Contribution From 
	Date 
	Prohibited Amount 
	Prohibited Amount 

	Corporations: 
	Corporations: 

	America First Policies, Inc. 
	America First Policies, Inc. 
	3/4/2019 
	$450.74 

	Event Bri!!ht 
	Event Bri!!ht 
	6/6/2019 
	$805 

	Event Bright 
	Event Bright 
	6/13/2019 
	$360 

	Event Bright 
	Event Bright 
	6/20/2019 
	$420 

	Sauare, Inc. 
	Sauare, Inc. 
	6/30/2019 
	$8 540 

	Watson's, Inc. 
	Watson's, Inc. 
	5/14/2019 
	$500 

	Watson's, Inc. 
	Watson's, Inc. 
	6/24/2019 
	$2,000 

	Subtotal: $13,075.74 
	Subtotal: $13,075.74 
	$13,075.74 

	LLCs: 
	LLCs: 

	Joyce Prope1i ies LLC 
	Joyce Prope1i ies LLC 
	5/14/2019 
	$1 000 

	Sellers Real Estate LLC 
	Sellers Real Estate LLC 
	5/28/2019 
	$1,000 

	Subtotal: $2,000 
	Subtotal: $2,000 
	$2 000 

	U nre2istered Or2anizations: 
	U nre2istered Or2anizations: 

	Republican Women of Cary 
	Republican Women of Cary 
	3/12/2019 
	$3,500 

	Women For America First 
	Women For America First 
	2/7/2019 
	$19 000 

	Subtotal: 
	Subtotal: 
	$22,500 

	Grand Total Prohibited Amount Not Refunded: 
	Grand Total Prohibited Amount Not Refunded: 
	$37,575.74 


	1 
	1 
	1 

	2 
	2 
	On May 19, 2020, RAD sent the Committee a Request for Additional Infonnation 

	3 
	3 
	9("RF AI") referencing the questionable contributions appearing on the 2019 Mid-Year Repo1i . 

	4 
	4 
	The RF AI included a list ofthe possible prohibited contributions and suggested that "[i]f the 

	5 
	5 
	amounts in question were deposited into [the] Committee's Non-Contribution Account" the 

	6 
	6 
	Committee should amend its repo1i listing "Non-Contribution Account in the description field or 

	7 
	7 
	in memo text." 10 
	Between July 2020 and November 2021, the RAD analyst attempted to contact 

	8 
	8 
	the Committee's cunent and past treasurers by telephone and email to obtain a response to the 

	9 
	9 
	RFAI. 11 
	During two phone calls before the Refen al, the Committee's cmTent treasurer, Kremer, 

	10 
	10 
	acknowledged receiving a voicemail regarding the refe1Table issue, and indicated that the 

	TR
	9 
	Amended Refenal at 2; Women Vote Smart, RFAI (May 19, 2020) (referencing 2019 Mid-Year Repo1t). 

	TR
	10 
	Women Vote Smart, RFAI at 1 (May 19, 2020) (referencing the Commission's "Repo1ting Guidance for 

	TR
	Political Collllllittees that Maintain a Non-Contribution Account"). 

	TR
	11 
	Amended Refenal at 2-4. 


	MUR 8043 (Women Vote Smart) Factual and Legal Analysis Page 4 of 7 
	1 
	Committee abruptly shut down and has been inactive since filing its 2019 Mid-Year Report.
	12 

	2 After the Referral, Kremer spoke with RAD by phone about the 2019 Mid-Year Report and 
	3 indicated that the contributions from Eventbrite and Square, Inc., were aggregated receipts from 
	4 the sale of tickets and merchandise, and that she would work on identifying the sources of the 
	5 receipts identified in the RFAI. To date, the Committee has not responded to the RFAI or to the 
	6 
	notifications of the Referral by amending its disclosure reports or refunding the contributions.
	13 

	7 Consistent with the treasurer’s statement that the Committee is inactive, the Committee 
	14

	8 has not filed any additional reports since its 2019 Year-End Report.  The Committee has since 
	9 been subject to numerous Administrative Fine (“AF”) matters for failure to file disclosure reports 
	10 and has $49,214 in outstanding penalties assessed through the AF program that have yet to be 
	11 paid.
	15 

	The Committee’s website, , is no longer active and a search of the internet archive indicates that the website has not been functioning since January 24, 2021. See Women Vote Smart, Amended Statement of Organization at 1 (June 26, 2019); see 401 Authorization Required, WOMEN FOR TRUMP, 24, 2021) []. 
	12 
	www.womenvotetrump.com
	www.womenvotetrump.com

	https://womenfortrump.com (Jan. 
	*/ /
	https://web.archive.org/web/20210101000000
	https:/womenfortrump.com


	OGC sent the Committee a notification of the Referral on November 4, 2021, by email to the Committee’s last known email address listed on its Statement of Organization. Letter from Roy Q. Luckett, Acting Assistant Gen. Couns., CELA, FEC, to Amy S. Kremer, Treasurer, Women Vote Smart (Nov. 4, 2021). On April 4 and 6, 2022, OGC sent a copy of the Amended Referral to the Committee’s email and post office box addresses, and mailed a copy to the treasurer’s address. See Email from Christal Dennis, CELA, FEC, to 
	13 

	Supra note 12 and accompanying text. 
	14 

	Women Vote Smart, AF 4244 (Mar. 23, 2022) ($11,786 civil penalty for non-filing 2021 Mid-Year); AF 4199 (Dec. 2, 2021) ($8,418 civil penalty for non-filing 2020 Year-End); AF 4101 (Oct. 22, 2021) ($8,418 civil penalty for non-filing 2020 Post-General); AF 3952 (Aug. 12, 2021) ($7,395 civil penalty for non-filing 2020 October Quarterly); AF 3907 (July 16, 2021) ($6,656 civil penalty for non-filing 2020 July Quarterly); AF 3833 (Jan. 7, 2021) ($6,541 civil penalty for non-filing 2020 April Quarterly). Four of
	15 

	MUR 8043 (Women Vote Smart) Factual and Legal Analysis Page 5 of 7 
	1 III. LEGAL ANALYSIS 2 Under the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the “Act”), corporations 3 are prohibited from making contributions to federal candidates or their authorized committees, 4 and candidates and authorized committees are prohibited from knowingly receiving or accepting 5 such Under Commission regulations, a contribution from an LLC is permissible 6 if the LLC is treated as a partnership for tax purposes and has not elected to be treated as a 7 LLCs that claim corporate statu
	contributions.
	16 
	corporation by the Internal Revenue Service.
	17 
	18 

	10 Treasurers must make their best efforts to determine the legality of 11   If the legality of the contribution cannot be determined, the treasurer must 12 13 Pursuant to Carey v. FEC, a hybrid political committee, which makes both independent 14 expenditures and direct contributions, can accept unlimited and corporate contributions but must 15 maintain a separate non-contribution account for the purpose of making independent expenditures 16 and a separate contribution account that is subject to the Act’s 
	for evidence of illegality.
	19 
	the contribution.
	20
	refund the contribution within 30 days of receipt.
	21 

	52 U.S.C. § 30118(a); 11 C.F.R. § 114.2(a), (b)(1). 11 C.F.R. § 110.1(g). Id. § 110.1(g)(3). Id. § 103.3(b). Id. § 103.3(b)(1). Id. The Commission’s regulation further states that if the treasurer later discovers that a contribution is 
	16 
	17 
	18 
	19 
	20 
	21 

	illegal based on new evidence, the treasurer shall refund the contribution within thirty days of the date the illegality is discovered. Id. § 103.3(b)(2). 
	MUR 8043 (Women Vote Smart) Factual and Legal Analysis Page 6 of 7 
	1   The Commission has also issued guidance 2 on the formation and operation of hybrid political committees  and explained that the 3 Commission would not enforce the corporate contribution ban and the limitation amounts against 4 non-connected political committees for the purpose of making contributions to candidates and 5 political parties as long as:  (1) the political committee deposits such contributions in a “Non6 Contribution Account,” which is for “the purpose of financing independent expenditures, 
	which to make contributions to federal candidates.
	22
	23
	-

	10   The guidance also provided instructions for reporting 11 the receipt of contributions deposited into a Non-Contribution Account, stating that a committee: 12 (1) should disclose such contributions on “Line 17 of Form 3X, titled ‘Other Federal 13 Receipts,’” and (2) “when itemizing on Schedule A, electronic filers should identify those receipts 14 by entering ‘Non-Contribution Account’ as memo text or in the description field.”15 Accordingly, the Committee, as a hybrid committee, could not accept contri
	percentage of activity for that account.
	24
	25 

	Carey v. FEC, 791 F. Supp. 2d 121 (D.D.C. 2011) (granting limited preliminary injunction enjoining Commission from enforcing 52 U.S.C. § 30116(a)(1)(C) and (a)(3) with regard to contributions received for independent expenditures by a non-connected political committee if such committee: (1) maintains a “soft money” account for use in making independent expenditures in federal elections and a separate “hard money” account that accepts contributions subject to “statutory contribution limits” for making contri
	22 

	See Press Release, FEC Statement on Carey v. FEC: Reporting Guidance for Political Committees that Maintain a Non-Contribution Account, FEC.GOV (Oct. 5, 2011), (requiring non-connected committees that make independent expenditures to maintain a separate “contribution” account to be able to make contributions to federal candidates from receipts that are subject to the Act’s limitations and source prohibitions). 
	23 
	carey-fec/ 
	https://www fec.gov/updates/fec-statement-on
	-



	Id. Id. 
	24 
	25 

	MUR 8043 (Women Vote Smart) Factual and Legal Analysis Page 7 of 7 
	1 in the Referral, the Committee’s 2019 Mid-Year Report disclosed that, from February through 2 3 designated for its non-contribution account.  That amount included contributions from four 4   Further, 5 RAD identified contributions from two LLCs whose tax status was unknown and contributions 6 from two unregistered organizations, Republican Women of Cary and Women for America First, 7 where there was no information as to whether the contributions were made with permissible 8 funds, such as from political p
	June 2019, the Committee received $37,575.74 in apparent prohibited contributions that were not 
	corporations, which were apparently prohibited from the face of the contributions.
	26

	10 addressing contributions from apparent prohibited sources disclosed on the Committee’s 2019 11 Mid-Year Report, but the Committee has not provided any clarification or correction of the issue 12 in Without further clarification that these receipts were actually deposited into the 13 Committee’s non-contribution account, it appears that the Committee deposited contributions 14 from prohibited sources into its federal account.  The Committee has not, to date, reported having 15 16 Therefore, the Commission
	response.
	27 
	issued any refunds for those contributions.
	28 

	Supra page 2. 
	26 

	The Commission has provided the Committee with numerous opportunities to address the receipt of the apparent prohibited contributions, including the May 2020 RFAI and the notice of the Referral. Supra pages 3-4; see also Amended Referral at 4. 
	27 

	We note that the Committee appears aware of the procedures for designating contributions into its non-contribution account because it did so in previous reports filed with the Commission. See, e.g., Women Vote Smart, Amended 2018 Year-End Report at 15 (Feb. 15, 2019) (designating an individual contribution for non-contribution account); Women Vote Smart, Amended 2018 October Quarterly Report at 6-15 (Oct. 16, 2018) (designating various individual contributions for the non-contribution account). 
	28 

	From: To: Cc: Subject: RE: MUR 8043 (Women Vote Smart and Amy S. Kremer in her official capacity as treasurer) Date: Thursday, September 15, 2022 7:59:23 PM Attachments: 
	Gary Lawkowski (Dhillon Law) 
	Christine C. Gallagher 
	David Warrington (Dhillon Law) 
	MUR 8043 (Women Vote Smart and Amy S. ...apacity as treasurer) Designation .pdf 

	Please find attached a designation of counsel form designating Mr. David Warrington as counsel in this matter. 
	Sincerely, 
	Gary M. Lawkowski 
	Counsel Dhillon Law Group 2121 Eisenhower Avenue, Suite 402 Alexandria, VA 22314 
	Figure
	GLawkowski@dhillonlaw.com 
	GLawkowski@dhillonlaw.com 
	GLawkowski@dhillonlaw.com 


	This communication and any attachments may contain information that is confidential, privileged, or otherwise protected by law and are only intended for use by the person to whom they are addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, do not copy, disclose, disseminate, or otherwise distribute this communication or any attachments. If you have received this communication in error, please contact the sender as soon as possible and delete this message and any attachments. 
	From:Sent: Tuesday, September 13, 2022 1:08 PM To:Subject: MUR 8043 (Women Vote Smart and Amy S. Kremer in her official capacity as treasurer) 
	 Christine C. Gallagher <cgallagher@fec.gov> 
	 Gary Lawkowski (Dhillon Law) <GLawkowski@dhillonlaw.com> 

	RAD Referral 21L-63 and Amended Referral (Nov. 3, 2021) (Women Vote Smart). 
	1 

	Women Vote Smart, Amended Statement of Organization at 2 (June 26, 2019); see also 52 U.S.C. § 30101(4)(A); 11 C.F.R. § 100.5(e)(3). Women Vote Smart, Amended Statement of Organization at 1 (Feb. 20, 2019). Stipulated Order and Consent Judgment, Civ. No. 11-259 RMC (D.D.C. Aug. 29, 2011). See Women Vote Smart, Amended Statement of Organization at 5 (Dec. 3, 2018) (FEC Miscellaneous Text 
	2 
	3 
	4 
	5 

	Id. 
	6 

	Amended Referral, Attach. 2. 
	7 

	External Email 
	External Email 
	Good afternoon, 
	Thank you for reaching out on behalf of Ms. Kremer and the committee. As discussed, please complete the attached Designation of Counsel form and email the signed form to me at the address below. 
	Christine C. Gallagher Attorney, Enforcement Division Office of the General Counsel Federal Election Commission 1050 First Street, NE Washington, DC 20463 
	Christine C. Gallagher Attorney, Enforcement Division Office of the General Counsel Federal Election Commission 1050 First Street, NE Washington, DC 20463 
	Tel: (202) 694-1505 E-Mail: 
	cgallagher@fec.gov 
	cgallagher@fec.gov 



	The information contained in this e-mail is transmitted by an attorney. It may be privileged and/or confidential, and is intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that disseminating, distributing, or copying any portion of this communication is strictly prohibited and may be in violation of 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(12). If this message has been received in error, or if you are not the intended recipient
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	From: To: Cc: ; Subject: RE: MUR 8043 (Women Vote Smart) Date: Friday, December 2, 2022 3:19:54 PM 
	David Warrington (Dhillon Law) 
	Christine C. Gallagher 
	Gary Lawkowski (Dhillon Law)
	Glynis Gilio (Dhillon Law) 

	Christine, 
	Thanks for your call. The Committee intends to provide a substantive response to the reason to believe finding and proposed conciliation agreement this month and wishes to enter into negotiations directed towards resolving this matter. The Committee does not intend to sign a tolling agreement at this time. 
	Moreover, we request that the Commission correct its form RTB notification letter. Currently, the letter states “In light of the fact that conciliation negotiations, prior to a finding of probable cause to believe, are limited to a maximum of 60 days, you should respond to this notification as soon as possible.” This statement is materially inaccurate. As the Commission’s “Guidebook for Complaints and Respondents on the FEC Enforcement Process” states, “[n]either the Act nor the Commission’s regulations spe
	content/documents/respondent guide.pdf
	https://www.fec.gov/resources/cms
	-


	Thank you very much for your time, we intend to follow up shortly. 
	David A. Warrington | Partner | DHILLON LAW GROUP 
	2121 Eisenhower Avenue, Suite 608 Alexandria, VA 22314 Direct: 703.574.1206 
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	STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY & DISCLAIMER: The information contained in this email message is attorney privileged and confidential, intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copy of this email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please notify us immediately by calling (415) 433-1700 and delete the message. Thank you. 
	From:
	 Christine C. Gallagher <cgallagher@fec.gov> 

	Sent: Friday, December 2, 2022 2:44 PM To:Cc:<> Subject: RE: MUR 8043 (Women Vote Smart) 
	 David Warrington (Dhillon Law) <DWarrington@dhillonlaw.com> 
	 Gary Lawkowski (Dhillon Law) <GLawkowski@dhillonlaw.com>; Glynis Gilio (Dhillon Law) 
	GGilio@dhillonlaw.com

	External Email 
	External Email 
	Good afternoon, 
	This is to confirm the telephone message I left for David yesterday regarding the extension and request for a tolling agreement. As we haven’t heard back on these issues, please let us know the Committee’s intentions. Thanks. 
	Christine C. Gallagher Attorney, Enforcement Division Office of the General Counsel Federal Election Commission 1050 First Street, NE Washington, DC 20463 Tel: (202) 694-1505 E-Mail: 
	cgallagher@fec.gov 
	cgallagher@fec.gov 


	The information contained in this e-mail is transmitted by an attorney. It may be privileged and/or confidential, and is intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that disseminating, distributing, or copying any portion of this communication is strictly prohibited and may be in violation of 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(12). If this message has been received in error, or if you are not the intended recipient
	From: To: ; Cc: Subject: RE: MUR 8043 (Women Vote Smart) Date: Friday, December 2, 2022 3:21:04 PM 
	Gary Lawkowski (Dhillon Law) 
	Christine C. Gallagher
	David Warrington (Dhillon Law) 
	Glynis Gilio (Dhillon Law) 

	Thanks for your email. To clarify, I do not intend to appear before the agency on behalf of the Respondent in this matter. 
	Sincerely, 
	Gary M. Lawkowski 
	Counsel Dhillon Law Group 2121 Eisenhower Avenue, Suite 402 Alexandria, VA 22314 
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	GLawkowski@dhillonlaw.com 
	GLawkowski@dhillonlaw.com 
	GLawkowski@dhillonlaw.com 


	This communication and any attachments may contain information that is confidential, privileged, or otherwise protected by law and are only intended for use by the person to whom they are addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, do not copy, disclose, disseminate, or otherwise distribute this communication or any attachments. If you have received this communication in error, please contact the sender as soon as possible and delete this message and any attachments. 
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	 Christine C. Gallagher <cgallagher@fec.gov> 
	 David Warrington (Dhillon Law) <DWarrington@dhillonlaw.com> 
	 Gary Lawkowski (Dhillon Law) <GLawkowski@dhillonlaw.com>; Glynis Gilio (Dhillon Law) 
	GGilio@dhillonlaw.com
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	External Email 
	Good afternoon, 
	This is to confirm the telephone message I left for David yesterday regarding the extension and request for a tolling agreement. As we haven’t heard back on these issues, please let us know the Committee’s intentions. Thanks. 
	Christine C. Gallagher Attorney, Enforcement Division Office of the General Counsel Federal Election Commission 1050 First Street, NE Washington, DC 20463 
	Christine C. Gallagher Attorney, Enforcement Division Office of the General Counsel Federal Election Commission 1050 First Street, NE Washington, DC 20463 
	Tel: (202) 694-1505 E-Mail: 
	cgallagher@fec.gov 
	cgallagher@fec.gov 
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	FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	Washington, D.C. 20463 
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	MEMORANDUM 
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	TO: 
	The Commission 

	4 
	4 

	TR
	FROM: 
	Lisa J. Stevenson 

	6 
	6 
	Acting General Counsel 

	7 
	7 

	8 
	8 
	Charles Kitcher 

	9 
	9 
	Associate General Counsel for Enforcement 

	11 
	11 
	Adrienne Baranowicz 

	12 
	12 
	Deputy Associate General Counsel for Enforcement 

	13 
	13 

	14 
	14 
	BY: 
	Ana Pena-Wallace "1/JW 

	TR
	Assistant General Counsel 

	16 
	16 

	17 
	17 
	Christine C. Gallagher 
	C4 

	18 
	18 
	Attorney 

	19 
	19 

	TR
	DATE: 
	September 19, 2023 

	21 
	21 

	22 
	22 
	SUBJECT: 
	MUR 8043 (Women Vote Sma1t) 

	23 
	23 
	Recommendation to Accept Signed Conciliation Agreement 


	24 The Commission previously found reason to believe that Women Vote Smart and Amy S. 
	Kremer in her official capacity as treasurer (the "Committee") violated 52 U.S.C. § 30118(a) by 26 in prohibited contributions. At that time, the Commission 27 authorized pre-probable cause conciliation and approved a conciliation agreement 28 Attached is a negotiated conciliation agreement signed by 29 the Committee's treasurer with a civil penalty of $5,000 payable in two equal installments over 
	knowingly accepting $37,575.74 
	1 
	2 

	six months. We recommend that the Commission accept the negotiated agreement and close the 31 file. 32 
	3 

	33 34 
	Certification ,r 2 (July 29, 2022). 
	The statute oflimitations in this matter begins to run on Februa1y 7, 2024, and ends June 30, 2024. Counsel declined all ofour requests to toll the statute oflimitations in exchange for extensions oftime given to provide a response to the Commission's reason-to-believe finding and a counterproposal. See infra note 6. 
	3 
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	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 
	28 In sum, we believe that this settlement represents an acceptable resolution of the matter.
	 it contains a full admission of the violation 30 and a prohibition against future violations of the Act.  Additionally, the remedial measures 31 proposed by the Committee itself reflect an understanding that the Commission takes such 
	29 
	Figure
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	1 We therefore recommend that the 2 Commission accept the signed conciliation agreement with the Committee.  Finally, we 3 recommend that the Commission close the file in this matter. 
	conduct and the clarification of the public record seriously.
	22 

	4 RECOMMENDATIONS: 
	5 
	5 
	5 
	1. Accept the attached signed conciliation agreement; 

	6 
	6 
	2. Approve the appropriate letter; and 

	7 
	7 
	3. Close the file. 


	8 9 10 
	22 
	The remedial measures in the agreement are likewise important should the treasurer continue to work with federal political committees.  Notably, in addition to the Committee in this matter, Kremer was previously treasurer of her own campaign committee when she ran for Congress. See Friends to Elect Amy Kremer, Inc., Statement of Organization (Mar. 2, 2017). 
	BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	In the Matter of ) 
	) MUR 8043 Women Vote Smart and Amy S. ) Kremer in her official capacity as ) treasurer (Recommendation to Accept ) Signed Conciliation Agreement) ) 
	CERTIFICATION 
	CERTIFICATION 

	I, Vicktoria J. Allen, recording secretary for the Federal Election Commission executive session on October 17, 2023, do hereby certify that the Commission decided by a vote of 4-1 to take the following actions in MUR 8043: 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Accept the signed conciliation agreement, as recommended in the Memorandum to the Commission dated September 19, 2023. 

	2. 
	2. 
	Approve the appropriate letter. 

	3. 
	3. 
	Close the file. 


	Commissioners Cooksey, Dickerson, Lindenbaum, and Weintraub voted affirmatively for the decision. Commissioner Broussard dissented.  Commissioner Trainor abstained. 
	October 18, 2023 Date 
	Attest: 
	Digitally signed by Vicktoria J Allen
	Figure

	Id. ,r,r 4, 5; see also Commission-Approved Conciliation Agreement ,r VI. I. 
	2 



	Vicktoria J Allen 
	Vicktoria J Allen 
	Date:  17:04:41 -04'00' 
	2023.10.18

	Vicktoria J. Allen Deputy Secretary of the Commission 
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	FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	WASHINGTON, D.C. 
	October 20, 2023 
	By Email Only 
	By Email Only 

	ggilio@dhillonlaw.com 
	ggilio@dhillonlaw.com 
	dwarrington@dhillonlaw.com 

	Glynis Gilio, Esq. David Warrington, Esq. Dhillon Law Group, Inc. 2121 Eisenhower Ave., Suite 608 Alexandria, VA 22314 
	RE: MUR 8043 (RR 21L-63) Women Vote Smart 
	Dear Ms. Gilio and Mr. Warrington: 
	On October 17, 2023,  the Federal Election Commission accepted the signed conciliation agreement submitted on behalf of your client, Women Vote Smart and Amy S. Kremer in her official capacity as treasurer, in settlement of a violation of 52 U.S.C. § 30118(a), a provision of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended.  Accordingly, the file has been closed in this matter. 
	Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days.  See Disclosure of Certain Documents in Enforcement and Other Matters, 81 Fed. Reg. 50,702            (Aug. 2, 2016).  Information derived in connection with any conciliation attempt will not become public without the written consent of the respondent and the Commission.  See 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(4)(B). 
	Enclosed you will find a copy of the fully executed conciliation agreement for your files.  Please note that the first installment of the civil penalty is due within one month of the conciliation agreement’s effective date, by November 19, 2023.  If you have any questions, please contact me at (202) 694-1650. 
	Sincerely, 
	Christine C. Gallagher Attorney 
	Enclosure  Conciliation Agreement 
	BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	In the Matter of 
	In the Matter of 
	In the Matter of 
	) 

	TR
	)
	 MUR 8043 

	Women Vote Smart and 
	Women Vote Smart and 
	) 

	Amy S. Kremer in her official capacity 
	Amy S. Kremer in her official capacity 
	) 

	as treasurer 
	as treasurer 
	) 


	CONCILIATION AGREEMENT 
	This matter was initiated by the Federal Election Commission pursuant to information ascertained in the normal course of carrying out its supervisory responsibilities. The Commission found reason to believe that Women Vote Smart and Amy S. Kremer in her official capacity as treasurer (the “Committee” or “Respondent”) violated 52 U.S.C. § 30118(a) by knowingly accepting prohibited contributions in violation of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the “Act”). 
	NOW, THEREFORE, the Commission and Respondent, having participated in informal methods of conciliation, prior to a finding of probable cause to believe, do hereby agree as follows: 
	I. The Commission has jurisdiction over Respondent and the subject matter of this proceeding, and this Agreement has the effect of an agreement entered pursuant to 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(4)(A)(i). 
	II. Respondent has had a reasonable opportunity to demonstrate that no action should be taken in this matter. 
	III. Respondent enters voluntarily into this Agreement with the Commission. 
	IV. The pertinent facts and law in this matter are as follows: 
	MUR 8043 (Women Vote Smart) Conciliation Agreement Page 2 of 5 
	1. Women Vote Smart is a non-connected, hybrid political committee, with a separate segregated account used for the purpose of making independent expenditures. See Carey 
	v.FEC, 791 F. Supp. 2d 121 (D.D.C. 2011). 
	2. Amy S. Kremer is the Committee’s treasurer. 
	3. 
	3. 
	3. 
	Under the Act, corporations are prohibited from making contributions to federal candidates or their authorized committees, and “a candidate, political committee, or other person is prohibited from knowingly accepting or receiving” such contributions. 52 U.S.C. § 30118; 11 C.F.R. § 114.2(b), (d). 

	4. 
	4. 
	Under Commission regulations, a contribution from a limited liability company (“LLC”) is permissible if the LLC is treated as a partnership for tax purposes and has not elected to be treated as a corporation by the Internal Revenue Service. 11 C.F.R. § 110.1(g). LLCs that claim corporate status or those that are publicly traded are treated as corporations for purposes of the Act. Id. § 110.1(g)(3). 

	5. 
	5. 
	A hybrid political committee, which makes both independent expenditures and direct contributions, can accept unlimited and corporate contributions but must maintain a separate non-contribution account for the purpose of making independent expenditures and a separate contribution account that is subject to the Act’s amount and source limitations from which to make contributions to federal candidates. See Carey, 791 F. Supp. 2d at 136. 

	6. 
	6. 
	A political committee’s treasurer is responsible for examining all contributions received for evidence of illegality. 11 C.F.R. § 103.3(b). Treasurers must make their best efforts to determine the legality of the contribution. Id. § 103.3(b)(1). If the legality of the contribution cannot be determined, the treasurer must refund the contribution within 30 days of receipt. Id. The Commission’s regulation further states that if the treasurer later discovers that 
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	a contribution is illegal based on new evidence, the treasurer shall refund the contribution within 
	thirty days of the date the illegality is discovered. Id. § 103.3(b)(2). 
	7. 
	7. 
	7. 
	For reporting purposes, the Commission has provided guidance that when itemizing contributions that are deposited into a non-contribution account, hybrid committees should identify those receipts by entering “Non-Contribution Account” as memo text or in the description field. FEC Statement on Carey v. FEC: Reporting Guidance for Political Committees that Maintain a Non-Contribution Account (Oct. 5, 2011). 

	8. 
	8. 
	In its 2019 Mid-Year Report, the Committee reported receiving $$22,500 from two unregistered organizations. 
	37,575.74 in prohibited contributions that were not designated for its non-contribution account. 
	This amount included $13,075.74 from four apparent corporations; $2,000 from two LLCs; and 


	9.
	9.
	  Respondent contends that of those contributions disclosed as coming two payment processing companies that aggregated individual contributions for the Committee.  Respondent contends that the latter contributions were disclosed incorrectly as coming from the corporations rather than from the individual contributors. 
	from corporations, $2,950.73 came from two apparent corporations, while $10,125.00 came from 



	V. Respondent violated 52 U.S.C. § 30118(a) by knowingly accepting a total of $ in prohibited contributions into its federal account. 
	37,575.74

	VI. 1. Respondent will pay a civil penalty to the Federal Election Commission in the amount of $5,000 Thousand Dollars ($5,000), pursuant to 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(5)(A), such penalty to be paid as follows: 
	a).   One initial payment of $2,500 is due within one month of the date 
	of this agreement; 
	MUR 8043 (Women Vote Smart) Conciliation Agreement Page 4 of 5 
	b). Thereafter, the remaining $2,500 is due within six months of the date of this agreement; 
	c). Each such installment shall be paid on the first day of the month in which it becomes due; 
	d). In the event that any installment payment is not received by the Commission by the fifth day of the month in which it becomes due, the Commission may, at its discretion, accelerate the remaining payments and cause the entire amount to become due upon ten days written notice to the Respondent. Failure by the Commission to accelerate the payments with regard to any overdue installment shall not be construed as a waiver of its right to do so with regard to future overdue installments; 
	2. 
	2. 
	2. 
	2. 
	In ordinary circumstances, the Commission would seek a higher civil penalty based on the violation outlined in the Agreement. The Commission is taking into account, however, the Committee’s very low cash-on-hand balance, that it is inactive, its willingness to correct the affected disclosure reports, and that according to the Committee, it has limited ability to raise additional funds and intends to terminate; 

	3. Respondent will cease and desist from violating 52 U.S.C. § 30118(a); 

	4. 
	4. 
	Respondent will work with the Reports Analysis Division to correct and file its affected reports within 12 months of the effective date of this Agreement; 

	5. 
	5. 
	The Committee will send its treasurer to Commission-sponsored compliance training for unauthorized committees within 12 months of the effective date of this Agreement; 

	6. 
	6. 
	Respondent will terminate no earlier than 30 days following its fulfillment of each of the requirements as set forth in Paragraphs VI.1, 4, and 5 above. 
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	VII. The Commission, on request of anyone filing a complaint under 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(l) concerning the matters at issue herein or on its own motion, may review compliance with this Agreement. If the Commission believes that this Agreement or any requirement thereof has been violated, it may institute a civil action for relief in the United States District Comt for the District of Columbia. 
	VIII. This Agreement shall become effective as of the date that all paities hereto have executed same and the Commission has approved the entire agreement. 
	IX. 
	IX. 
	IX. 
	Respondent shall have no more than 30 days from the date this Agreement becomes effective to comply with and implement the requirements contained in this Agreement, unless another time frame is provided above, and to so notify the Commission. 

	X. 
	X. 
	This Conciliation Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the pa1t ies on the matters raised herein, and no other statement, proinise, or agreement, either written or oral, made by either paity or by agents of either paity, that is not contained in this written Agreement shall be enforceable. FOR THE CO:MMISSION: Lisa J. Stevenson 


	Acting General Digitally signed 

	Charles
	Charles
	Counsel by Charles Kitcher 
	Date: 2023.10.19 


	Kitcher 
	Kitcher 
	BY: 

	09:56:43 -04'00' 
	Charles Kitcher Date Associate General Counsel for Enforcement 
	FOR THE RESPONDENT: 
	8/ 18/ 2023 
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	Date 
	Date 
	Name: Amy S. Kremer Position: Treasurer, Women Vote Sma1t 









